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Location of Jiahua Stores
and Shopping Mall
TEFHSRBYHOMUEE

BT &4t Taipei
Guang—x‘i} \J
<> e EHE Yanbu
AP, .
IR Taoyuan 'OQ R T
PO UENnT . 8 H K
A W& Dashatian owﬁ 7 Hong Kong
- S F9 Macao
S e
ga
¥ = Dongguan Haikou
fojalﬁﬂ)ﬁ Gongming BUREYT L
AR & Songgang ¢¥-. Guanlan Shopping Mall
EE OO
- BEXE V. .
Baoan District =HE (2R

DIHE(ERE) A #YIITH Shenzhen
Shajing (clo§ed) AEJE Shiyan «
s (EREE) ¢

Xixiang (closed)

Sanlian (closed)

BEEE Longh’ua.. e
. IR
Bantian Shopping Mall

IC.

224 75 Shuyuan Yage
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Xixiang (closed) Gongming
FaR(ERERA) /NG NFR

Shuyuan Yage Taoyuan

E L MR (EE)

Sanlian (closed) Dashatian Yanbu
=B (ERER) RAPH(ER)

Longhua Shajing (closed) Bantian Shopping Mall (include Bantian Store)
BEFE D H(ERIE) REEYH L (BREE)
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Guanlan Shopping Mall (include Guanlan Store)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERME

INTRODUCTION

2020 is the year when the world economy faces the greatest
challenge. The new pandemic raging around the world has led
to multiple meltdowns in the United States (“US”) stock market,
plummeting international oil prices, a significant decline in
international trade and investment, and a sharp contraction in the
service industry. The global economy will shrink in 2020, among
which the economies of advanced economies, emerging markets
and developing economies will shrink. The Chinese economy
may be the only major economy in the world that has positive
economic growth. Some European countries experienced a sharp
economic recession, and the new pandemic was the worst in
France and lItaly. The World Trade Organization predicts that the
transportation and tourism industries are greatly restricted, and
the global trade in goods will decline in 2020. Asian countries
have performed better against the pandemic, and their economies
have been less affected. In addition to the positive growth of
China’s GDP, Myanmar and Vietnam are expected to grow, while
Indonesia’s decline. Some countries have implemented measures
such as the lockdown the country and cities, cutting off navigation
and routes, and suspending production, which has paralyzed or
stagnated globalization characterized by the free flow of production
factors. Consumer demand and production demand continue to
shift from offline to online, and part of the demand is transferred
through online shopping, online education, online medical care,

FE
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

and online office. The internet has played an important role in
promoting economic recovery in various countries. At the same
time, the new scientific and technological revolution and industrial
transformation has driven the rapid development of technology,
supported the realization of network transformation in various fields
of the economy and society, and accelerated the era of technology,
together with Big Data, cloud computing, artificial intelligence,
etc., to promote the development of the digital economy and drive
entertainment, news, social networking, e-commerce, games and
other aspects of consumer Internet development.

In 2020, the consumption growth rate of all countries in the world
will be affected significantly. For the two largest consumer markets
in the world, China and the United States, there is an obvious
trend of shrinking total volume and becoming online. The European
economy experienced a severe contraction, and a large number
of restaurants and shops have been closed down. The pandemic
has changed consumers’ shopping habits and turned to online
shopping. During the shopping season, total retail sales in the
US increased and e-commerce sales soared by nearly 50%. In
China, residents’ online consumption habits have generally been
cultivated, and the scale of online consumption has increased
and consumption behaviour has continued to increase. Online
retail sales of physical goods in China increased year on year
(“YOY”) accounted for 25% of the total retail sales of consumer
goods. In 2020, some innovative retail trends have also emerged
in the retail industry, which are called e-groceries and internet
celebrity economy in the US, and community group buying and live
broadcast in China.

China’s economy will grow by 2.3% under the pandemic in 2020,
and final consumption expenditure will account for 54.3% of GDP.
For the whole year, the total social retail sales recorded RMB39.2
trillion, a YOY decrease of 3.9%. In the post-pandemic period,
online consumption has become more stable. The online retail sales
of physical goods for the year increased by 14.8% YOY, accounting
for 24.9% of total social retail sales, an increase of 4.2 percentage
points from the previous year. The consumption of catering and
retail categories showed positive trends of picking up. The negative
growth of retail consumption such as house purchases, car
purchases and apparel rebounded significantly at the end of the
year. Among them, communication equipment, cosmetics, tobacco
and alcohol increased significantly, while there was reduction in
negative growth categories, including goldsmith, apparel, and
catering.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
%%E%&i (IIE)

In 2020, the three major business sectors of cosmetics, coffee and
tea, and new energy vehicles will perform brilliantly. In particular,
Chinese brands of domestic products are rapidly deploying in
China’s urban cities under the impetus of capital. The cosmetics for
women is “basic consumption”, especially the young generation’s
concept of beauty and skin care is very popular, not limited to the
top international brands. The price performance ratio and quality
improvement of domestic products are enough to attract young
consumers. As one of the three major business formats for the rapid
expansion of retail properties, the cosmetics brand has high floor
efficiency and obvious customer flow effect which has become the
mainstream of its first-level business format adjustment in shopping
malls. After the pandemic has been stable, the gap between the
growth rate of cosmetics sales and the market average has further
widened, showing the huge potential of this market. Besides,
the emergence of domestic tea brands has greatly changed
consumers’ perceptions of traditional tea consumption. It is not
limited to the health of the product itself, but is also accompanied
by personality, trend, and fashionable consumption characteristics.
This reflects the consumer mentality similar to the early global
coffee brand consumption. Under a repetitive business model,
high profit margins accelerate capital entry, and leading brands
quickly penetrate the markets at all levels. During the same period,
domestic competitors emerged rapidly to divide the consumer
market. In the context of increasing economic uncertainty, the
Chinese tea and coffee market with low and medium unit prices
is a mainstream trend. There are more brands of medium-priced
single products, which will accelerate market competition. Auto
consumption rebounded significantly in the second half of the year,
especially the sales of mid-to-high-end vehicles and new energy
vehicles continued to increase. The growth rate of new energy
vehicle sales exceeded the average growth rate of the automotive
industry. With the various factors such as traffic restrictions,
reduction of emissions, and purchase tax concessions, the rise of
new energy vehicles is a general trend. The advantages of Chinese-
owned auto brands in the field of battery research help them to
enter the world-wide competition in the new energy vehicle market.

20204 - {bifmm « MPESER ~ FheelRRE=

AEENRRERZR  LETEBRERE
EEAEST - REMBHE— R -

fetmz R ZEEE BN [EXmBE] - L

HRFE-KAEXM®  #EHENHER
A MARRNER KX EEEm

B (B L A0 2 nERET EL‘M&%IEE?%%

EoERTEMERRBEBR=ARREZ—
e oS  TRBERE - BX Eﬁ*«*@
PLER  ERAEEBREFARNIRMA

F o RISIBER - (LihmBrHERIg R E
MISHENEEE-—FNKR  BREE—D
BHEXEN - I BRRKRBEH ST
BAREHEELERRANHEER - XK
HETBRREMANSNREEE - HAH
MA@ - BR - RREEBRE - S’
82 5 HY 2 BR A A 0B G K B B AR RO OH
BELORE AREAEHENBAERAT 5
MEXINERERARD » EEMERETESE
A5 - A BRABRFHFREBESR - N
DBEMS - ERETHEEERZNNERT

MR BRI BET 5 - R R EE R mIETE

%E%Iumi’f R EEmRmE RS
pijig 5 o /IE/QEEATE*&EE)%E»E@

7t tﬁzqﬂmiﬁ}mﬁﬂl%ﬁam TR IHE R
TETIRTT - FreL IR TR SH B IR IR IB THTT
EVIIRE - RINRITHEMG - SE R - BB
ERERELHREE  HERTENELEX
BB - PEECMBEEEBHERENE
FEEREMAL RBENFEERTETS

EETEERERAR —T -TFFR 9



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

In the consumption 3.0 era, new consumption content creates
more diversified consumption scenes, which in turn complement
and improve the consumption scenes of traditional shopping malls,
while renewing and upgrading diversified floor plan property to
carry more modern consumption. Scenes, such as cultural and
creative e-sports, event interpretation, city back streets, parks
and greenways, etc. and more yet to be discovered, yet unknown
“X scenes”. The three-level commercial mode of “city, regional
and community level” in traditional cognition cannot meet new
diversified and repetitive consumer demands. And the scene of
consumption is no longer limited to traditional department stores,
shopping malls, outlets, hypermarkets and other high-quality retail
properties themselves. The consumption from traditional stores
can be generated by more consumer highlights. For example, the
neglected place of inheritance of urban culture, the back alleys of
the old streets, stimulating the vitality of the night economy.

In terms of shopping malls, the number of newly opened
commercial projects in 2020 is 374, a YOY decrease of 28%.
The newly added commercial building area was approximately
32.76 million square meters, a decrease of approximately 11.16
million square meters from last year; the average single building
area was approximately 90,000 square meters. The number of
commercial openings throughout the year will hit a new low in
the past three years. The pandemic led to a sharp drop in newly
opened properties in 2020. According to the statistics of the annual
planned opening of the year at the beginning of 2020, nearly 900
commercial projects was planned to open, but the actual opening
rate is only 40%. From a regional perspective, East China, which
has a developed economy and large consumption power, is still
strong, leading the seven regions with 156 openings throughout
the year, accounting for about 42%. Guangdong and Zhejiang
ranked second and third respectively. From the perspective of
urban distribution, 2020 will still be a pattern of “active frontline
and rising sinking markets”. Chengdu is the most active; Shanghai
ranks second and Shenzhen ranks third. From the perspective
of the distribution of commercial scale, the scale is the largest
in the range of 50,000 to 100,000 square meters, accounting
for about 35%. These premises integrate basic shopping and
consumer needs such as shopping, eating, drinking and playing,
and also introduce theaters, entertainment clubs, movie theaters,
etc. Experiencing formats such as animal museums, which have
enough space for event marketing, are often favored by many
developers. Although the number of newly opened commercial
projects has decreased significantly compared with 2019, giant
companies are still increasing market supply. Especially under
the pandemic, the company’s anti-risk ability and comprehensive
ability are tested, and the leading position of giant companies in the

10 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

EHEIORMK I HEANRAEEAS
TTEREES S - MAREES R RERE
HATEBERBYT OBESRNRE &
ZIALMES BRI TR - AHEZHRYL
HESS  HLXAIER  BFRE  miH
®E REHEFEUNELZRFER - H
BRAOIXGR ] - BHEBAPE AR -
BEA  HREI=ZABEERERTERES
SHEZT - REEBHHERK - MBEEH
ENSESTTBRRRERNEE - BYT
D BERET  ABSERETEMER
T EHERESHHBEIELEZHES
& o Bl - B RAAN AU E ——
EERE - NARELENES °

BYHh LM 202002 HAENTE
JHEH=37418 ' AL TE28% - #iEE
EREMBAB276E T AL EFRED
1,1168 7 + FHUEREEMBELNIES - &
FRENPEREREDA T TH=ZFNF
K - EBH2020F HAMEAKNZTARE
S RIEFERE  RB2020F F 5t
MEFFEFAEER  F0EREEEK
Fi% BEERBERENK - HRELEE
KEEE  HBAOAMERMEDARS
2FL16EMESER ERES - HbS
EH42% c BRENINRIEE =4I -
BB DMHIER LEE  2020FKER [#F—
BIER - TIMBEEINIEE - K#B&A
B BB  RYNPNE= -
BENSHERLEE  REAESZ10BHE
E5%  HLLA85%  ELERBRATHE
Y R EEAREYFEEBE K - 13
ATBIBE - IR%E2f - Bt - BWESE
Bl XETHNERAEESITE
AARIRZHALESH - ATHEES
T8 ER2010F KIEE R - BEEETE
EBETEHMATSHE -LHREESFRS
FET ALEROCEMTEBRENMEZE
MERE T BEHEEMITEE LA R
oo B BEEREBM A EEAR [



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

industry has become more and more prominent. At the same time,
as China’s urbanization has entered the era of “refined operation”,
urban renewal has been a topic that continues to attract attention.
The business has evolved from the initial “property renewal” to
the commercial integration of “people, industry and city”. As
far as commercial real estate is concerned, the transformation
and renewal of existing commerce is a kind of inheritance of
urban culture. In addition to the “dress up”, the important thing
is to realize the organic renewal of “symbiosis”. On the basis of
preserving the original architectural culture, the function of the
building is expanded through cultural performances, catering
and other formats, and the symbiosis of architecture, culture,
and commerce is realized. With the outbreak of the pandemic,
community business, as the business closest to people’s dalily life,
has played an important role in protecting people’s livelihood and
promoting stability. Community businesses have main content,
including district supermarkets dominated by fresh produce, and
district convenience stores, as well as the group buying and home
delivery businesses in 2020. The community business mainly
refers to the community within the fifteen-minute walk of people.
In addition to supermarkets, convenience stores, hypermarkets, it
also covers catering, clothing retail, clinics, pharmacies, educational
institutions, etc., to meet people’s daily lives. Regardless its exterior
architecture, interior space design, or the marketing of scene
content, more and more commercial projects focus on attractive
exterior decoration. Especially in the fierce market competition
environment, outlook is also highly focused as the means of
differentiated competition. Judging from the performance of the
new supply market, the existing renovation properties can give
the market a new experience by upgrading their appearance and
content, and the newly opened properties are focusing on the
“outlook”, hoping that the grand opening ceremony can give out
surprises. The upgrading of shopping centers is much higher than
that of department stores, supermarkets and other industries, and
fresh elements must be injected. Some newly opened commercial
projects continue to introduce new content in the scene space
and business combination, such as themed blocks close to the
urban culture, the traditional theme museum, the sky sports field,
the theater experience center, the zoo, etc. into the shopping
center. On the whole, in addition to the national trend culture, night
economy, first store economy, parent-child economy, pet economy
and other models are still hot, some distinctive economic forms
and marketing models show more enthusiasm and advantages,
including livestreaming. Affected by the pandemic, retail store
businesses are seeking new ways to bring goods through online
live broadcasts. In addition to relying on online sales of goods,
they have created some immersive live broadcast scenes that
are visually and experienced through unique offline experience
characteristics.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the pandemic has affected traditional department
stores which faced unprecedented pressure, with the gradual
reduction of closure of stores by retail giants in all city area. The
retail business has been recovering. The impact upon the operation
in the retail industry posed by the surge of e-business gradually
surfaced, not to mention the effect brought by high rents, high wage
and other rising costs. Due to unfavourable business environment,
the Group has performed fair operating results.

Retail industry was generally operating under difficulties. Despite
the negative factors, the Group has made changes to its operation
and recorded a fair operating result. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group has recorded revenue from continuing
operations of approximately RMB428.1 million, representing a YOY
decrease of approximately 33.7%. Gross profit from direct sales
was approximately RMB42.7 million, representing a YOY decrease
of approximately 45.7%, and consolidated loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately RMB194.5 million,
representing a YOY increase of approximately 271.5%, mainly
attributable to provision of impairment loss on existing loss making
stores or shopping malls, and the written off of assets upon closure
of three stores during the year. Revenue decrease was principally
attributable to the drop in sales of goods, commissions from
concessionaire sales, rental income from investment properties and
interest income from financing services. However, increase in rental
income from subleasing of shopping malls and rental income from
sub-leasing of shop premises have partly offset the overall decrease
of income.

During the year, the group closed three retail stores. The Xixiang
Store was closed due to the expiration of the lease agreement and
the deterioration of the surrounding business environment. The
Sanlian Store and Shajing Store were respectively affected by the
deterioration of the general business environment and increased
competition in the surrounding area, which led the Group to make
the decision to close the store. For shopping mall, the Guanlan
Shopping Mall in Longhua District, Shenzhen has been fully
operated during the year to gain market share. The group reformed
its operations, reorganized the internal structure of four of its
flagship stores, implemented an operational responsibility system,
and streamlined business processes. In terms of cost reduction, the
headquarters staff structure was adjusted to reduce the pressure
on the group’s funds.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

On the administration aspect, the Group has implemented various
measures to maintain its operational efficiency and minimize
operating costs in relation to the human resources system.
Recruitments through various channels such as carear fair, head
hunting, campus recruitment were held during the year, which
enhanced the quality and technical knowledge of new staff
members for preparing new business in future. With regard to risk
management, the Group has revised the overall risk management
framework by enhancing the internal system, internal control,
industry knowledge, and special investigation.

PROSPECTS

It is anticipated that the slowdown in economic growth rate of
China will exist as the high operating cost will extort the profit
margin which led to more business merger in the retail industry in
2020. The traditional retail store will be highly conglomerated with
online store by sharing customer data, product information and
sales tactics such that to provide a more enjoyable and convenient
shopping experience. Apart from this, multi-industries development
will be a main stream in retail sector. The China retail market will be
highly consolidated into various large operators to make use of its
corporate marketing power and ability, and to increase the market
competitive strength.

The Directors believe that both opportunities and challenges ahead,
and the retail industry will compete and develop in a better market
environment.

In business development aspect, the Group will uphold the principle
of “consolidating resources and developing retail chain business”,
to strengthen the management, reiterate the competitive strength,
upgrade the brand image and expand in a stable manner. The
Group will focus on the development in areas such as Guangdong
and Guangxi by making use of different expansion models including
“acquisition, merging, investment holdings and joint venture”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group, and would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders,
business partners, and valuable customers for their utmost support
to the Group.

Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
29 March 2021
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERSEEEAEHE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (3EfE3#), aged 60, is the founder, executive
Director and the chairman of the Group. He is responsible for
the overall management, strategic planning and major decision
making of the Group. Mr. Zhuang is the father of Mr. Zhuang
Xiao Xiong. Mr. Zhuang has over 26 years of experience in the
retail industry. He had served as a honorary deputy chairman
of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce (#YIT4HE€), a
committee member of Guangdong Province Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (RIHEREZE®), a
member of the China General Chamber of Commerce (1 Bl & %
%4 2), a deputy chairman of Shenzhen Private Entrepreneur’s
Chamber of Commerce (YT R EBEKEIE), a deputy chairman
of Shenzhen Franchise Association (FIITEEEETEH D),
and a honorary chairman of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber
of Commerce (RINEZEAREE). Mr. Zhuang graduated from
Guangdong Administrative and Management College (&R 1TH £
Ft) majoring in modern management in July 1999, and obtained
the Master of Business Administration of senior management
from the Sun Yat-sen University (1L KZ2). He also received the
award of “Paragon of Work” of Guangdong province (R & 4 &)
EEFESR) in May 2003 and the award of Outstanding Staff Care
Private Ownership Entrepreneur (2EBEE LEFRLEDER)
in September 2006. He was elected as the Top Ten Person of
the Year in Commerce of Guangdong in 2007 and the Top Ten
Creditable Entrepreneur in the Integrated Retail Industry in China
in the year 2007 and 2009 respectively, and the deputy chairman
of the Hong Kong Volunteers Federation in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has
served the Group for over 26 years.

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong (§£51&), aged 59, is an executive Director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. He is responsible for
the financial accounting of the Group. Mr. Zhuang obtained an
undergraduate diploma in financial accounting from Guangdong
Radio and Television University (EEREE TR AE) in 1990
and pursued advanced studies in management in Sun Yat-Sen
University. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in August 1995 and has
over 26 years of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Zhuang was
accredited senior membership of the International Profession
Certification Association (BFERE#HE) and membership of the
China Association for Employment Promotion (Bt #{2#E€) in
2008 and has obtained a master degree in business administration
from the University of Wales in England in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has
served the Group for over 23 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong (¥ #), aged 38, Mr. Zhuang obtained
from the University of Luton, United Kingdom a bachelor of arts
degree in business administration in 2005 and a master of science
degree in finance and business management in 2006. Mr. Zhuang is
the deputy chairman of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce
(Association of the Industrialists and Businessman) (% 3l 11 42 7%
@ (LB )) and a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen (B 17 73l & 8
). Mr. Zhuang is the son of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang
Su Lan. He joined the Group as full time member in 2006 and is
responsible for the overall operation management of the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has served the Group for over 15 years.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung (8 §8%f), CPA (practising), FCMA, aged
63, is a practising accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chin is a fellow
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Chin is an independent non-
executive director of Excalibur Global Financial Holdings Limited
(SEHK: 08350). Mr. Chin has served the Group for over 13 years.

Mr. Sun Ju Yi (&), aged 68, graduated from the Finance and
Economic Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978 and underwent
a master research study program at the Finance and Economics
Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978. He is a senior accountant
and a registered accountant in the PRC. He had been a lecturer
of the Finance and Economic Institute of Tianjin and the assistant
to the principal of Shenzhen Zhong Hua Accounting Firm. Mr. Sun
has over 31 years of experience in financial lecturing, accounting,
auditing and corporate financial management. Mr. Sun was an
independent non-executive director of Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd (formerly known as Macau Investment Holdings
Limited) (SEHK: 02362). He is a director of Gemdale Corporation
(&% ) (600383.SH), a listed PRC Shanghai property developer.
Mr. Sun has served the Group for over 8 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Mr. Ai Ji (X&), aged 67, graduated from Hunan Radio and
Television University (#58 E#EE R AE) with a bachelor’'s degree
in law and obtained the qualification of a practising lawyer in
1988. Mr. Ai is a practising lawyer in the PRC, has worked for
Hunan Chuhua Law Firm (#1222 AIE7FT) and Guangdong
ShenTianCheng Law Firm (BR &K EZAIEFT), and is a senior
partner of the Yingke Law Firm (2 EHZENEFSFT). He is a member of
the standing committee of the fifth session of National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (Shenzhen)
(FREARBAHEEH XY TEZES), a member of various
committees (including member of the sixth and seventh sessions
of standing committee of Guangdong, deputy chairman of legal
system committee, and deputy chairman of the fourth and fifth
sessions of Shenzhen committee) of the China Democratic National
Construction Association (A B R EZBIE). Mr. Ai practised as a
legal counsel and has accumulated over 39 years experience in
various commercial and law firms in the PRC. Mr. Ai has served the
Group for over 13 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Li Chong (BR¥£), aged 45, is the manager for
the engineering department of the Group, responsible for the
establishment of engineering and facilities management system,
purchase of bulk equipment, and project based renovation program
etc. Mr. Chen obtained the certificate of Housing Architecture
from the Fujian Agriculture And Forestry University and is a PRC
registered civil engineer. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2003. He has
extensive engineering facilities management experience. Mr. Chen
has served the Group for over 18 years.

Mr. Li Dong (Z#), aged 46, is the manager responsible for
security and safety management of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a
certificate of Business Administration from the Open University of
China in 2011. Mr. Li has served as store manager, deputy manager
of the human resources department, the chief operation officer,
the general manager of the Guangxi subsidiary and the deputy
manager of the procurement department. Mr. Li has over 19 years
of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Li has served the Group for
over 17 years.

Mr. Wen Meng Chen ((RZE), aged 43. Mr. Wen is the deputy
manager of supermarket procurement department, responsible for
the commodity sourcing and resource allocation. Mr. Wen obtained
the bachelor of business administration degree of Xi’an Jiaotong
University. Mr. Wen joined the Group in 1997 and had been working
as store-in-charge of Shajing store, Longhua store, Shiyan store,
and Gongming store etc. He possessed rich experience in retail
commercial complex management. Mr. Wen has served the Group
for over 22 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Ms. Lang Li (BBR), aged 38, is the deputy manager of the
commercial division operation and marketing development of
the Group, responsible for the commercial operation and sales
and marketing management. Ms. Lang obtained the certificate
of Business Management from the Henan University, possessed
commercial operation management experience. She was a senior
operation management of Rainbow Department Store and deputy
district operation manager of Soring Shenzhen. Ms. Lang joined the
Group on June 2018. Ms. Lang has served the Group for over 2
years.

Mr. Liu Ya Feng (2I3E1#), aged 37, is the chief information officer,
responsible for the overall information technology of the Group and
the operation of its subsidiary — Shenzhen BJH Network Technology
Limited. Mr. Liu obtained the certificate of Information Management
System from the Guilin University of Electronic Technology in 2005.
Mr. Liu performed event management, IT reconstruction 2005, work
flow enhancement, and commercial digital operation. He was the
IT manager of Shenzhen Guotaian Education Technology Co., Ltd
and Xinchuangji Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu joined the
Group on October 2018. Mr. Liu has served the Group for over 2
years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo (fIfi#l), FCCA, CPA, ACG, ACS, aged
47, is the finance manager and company secretary of the Group.
Mr. Ho obtained a bachelor degree of Business Administration
(Honours) in Accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University
in 1995 and a master degree in Corporate Governance from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS”) and an associate
member of the The Chartered Governance Institute (“CGI”) -
formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (“ICSA”). He was awarded the Chartered Secretary
and Chartered Governance Professional dual qualification of the
CGl and HKICS. Mr. Ho has experience in accounting, auditing and
corporate finance. Mr. Ho has served the Group for over 13 years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWE TN

(A)

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic has hit the global
economy. The blockade measures across countries caused
large-scale economic shutdown and soared unemployment
rate. Amid the balance between “life preservation” and
“livelihood protection”, the recovery momentum has
obviously been slowed down. The International Monetary
Fund (IMF) predicts that the global economy will shrink by
4.4% while the Organization for Economic Cooperation
and Development (OECD) predicts that the global economy
will shrink by 4.2% in 2020. The economy of US has been
suffered, but the overall performance was still better than
most developed countries.

The widespread pandemic outbreak caused the financial
market plummeted successively. In order to stabilize the
market, the US Federal Reserve cut interest rates twice and
announced quantitative easing measures without caps. It
successively launched monetary policy tools to inject liquidity
into the market and provided credit support to entities.
In order to stabilize the economy, the US government
has introduced four batches of US dollar fiscal stimulus
measures. With these unprecedented monetary policy and
fiscal measures, the US stock market bounced back. The
recovery of the US economy will largely depend on the
progress of pandemic control. The number of confirmed
cases of COVID-19 in the US and overseas has fluctuating,
posing challenges to economic recovery.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

20

The road to economic recovery in Europe is long and rugged.
The outbreak in Europe predates the US, and the social
distancing measures adopted by governments to prevent
and control the pandemic are generally stricter than those
in the US. Europe has also introduced loose monetary and
fiscal stimulus policies that are larger than those during the
financial crisis, but they are limited by the collective decision-
making mechanism of the European Union (EU) and the
Eurozone. The policy strength is not as strong as that of the
US and the speed of action is also slower than that of the
US. These caused the European economy to shrink more
than the US in the pandemic. In the first half of 2020, the
euro zone's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) fell by 11.8%
YOY. Spain fell by 21.5% and was the worst. Germany, the
best performer, also fell by 9.8%, which was higher than
the 9% decline in the US over the same period. The decline
in the United Kingdom (UK) was as deep as 19.8%, the
worst recession in 300 years. Under the “second pandemic”
and “second blockade”, the recovery momentum of the
European economy has slowed down significantly, and the
economic outlook of the euro zone has deteriorated. The
ASEAN economy has been hit hard by the pandemic, but
better than that of Europe and the US. In 2020, the GDP
of emerging ASEAN economies (Indonesia, Malaysia, the
Philippines, Thailand, and Vietnam) is expected to decline
by 4.3%, outperforming Europe and the US. The BRICS
countries (excluding China) have regained their vitality.
As large developing countries, the BRICS countries are
located at different continents of the world, with different
development conditions, different development pace, and
different industrial structures, and their performance in this
pandemic varies. In terms of pandemic prevention and
control, the BRICS countries are lacking. The cumulative
number of confirmed cases in India, Brazil, and Russia
ranks second to fourth in the world. In terms of economic
performance, the economies of the BRIC countries will
shrink significantly during the year. Brazil has experienced
the biggest economic recession in nearly 120 years, and the
actual pandemic situation is serious. In Brazil’s economic
structure, the service industry accounts for approximately
63% of GDP, the highest among the BRIC countries
(54% in Russia). The service industry is most affected by
social distancing measures including large-scale closure
of commercial activities and lockdown. The economy is
expected to shrink by 5.1% throughout the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Within China, facing the attack by the pandemic, the prime
tasks are the prevention and control of the pandemic, the
coordination of economic and social development work,
the recovery of economic operations, and the restoration
of employment and people’s livelihoods. On the demand
side, total retail sales of consumer goods for the year were
RMB39,198 billion, a decrease of 3.9% YOY. National
investment in fixed assets increased by 2.9% YOY, and
investment in high-tech industries and social horizon
increased rapidly. The total volume of imports and exports
of goods for the year increased by 1.9% YQOY, and the trade
structure continued to be improved. Consumer price index
rose by 2.5% throughout the year, which was lower than
the 2.9% increase in the previous year. The employment
rate is generally stable, with 11.86 million new jobs in the
city. The urban unemployment rate in 2020 is 5.6%, which
is lower than the expected target of around 6%. The annual
per capita disposable income of residents nationwide was
RMB32,189, a real increase of 2.1% after deducting price
factors, which was basically in line with economic growth.
In 2020, China’s domestic consumption recovered steadily.
Consumption is still the “core stone” for the stable economic
growth. The main characteristics of domestic consumption
are the continuous recovery of commodity trading, the
recovery of service spending, the rapid development of new
consumption mode, the recovery of urban and rural markets,
and the overall stable of prices. As China has become the
world’s second largest economy, the per capita income
level has gradually increased, with the disposable portion
has increased correspondingly. China’s consumer market
has entered a stage of rapid growth. Therefore, in addition
to the expansion of the scale of China’s consumer market,
the standard of consumer market has also enhanced. Future
consumption will move towards high-end, diversified and
personalized characteristics.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

22

In Guangdong, retail chains are facing the domestic
trade circulation, the pandemic challenge, the small store
economy, community team purchase, livestreaming,
touchless delivery, and blind box economy etc. In 2020,
the total retail sales of consumer goods in Guangdong
Province exceed RMB4.0 trillion. Governments at all levels
have formulated policies to promote consumption, focused
on supplementing the consumption infrastructure, through
distribution of subsidies, consumer vouchers, to promote
the sale of automobiles and home appliances in rural area,
to encourage information consumption, rural consumption,
cultural and travel consumption, and develop online
education and remote medical care services. There were
some highlights. First, support Guangzhou and Shenzhen
to build international consumption cities, establish city duty-
free shops with local characteristics to redirect overseas
spending. Secondly, implement the “same production
line, same standard, same quality” product for domestic
and export sales. The “Guangdong Trade” plan to explore
the domestic market. Then, the construction of high-
quality business circles and building of consumer festive
brands. In addition, accelerate rural consumer demand
and potential by promoting the replacement of old motor
cars, home appliances and necessities. Besides, support
the development of new types of consumption, expand
consumption on information platforms, develop new
business forms such as smart stores and restaurants etc
to form new service consumption. Finally, increase public
spending by enhancing public service efficiency including
education, culture, medical care, aged services, childcare,
and sports etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Resident consumers affected by the pandemic have shifted
from “physical stores + platform-based e-commerce”
shopping behavior to “integrated e-commerce, social
networking websites, vertical platforms, brand name
websites, livestreaming, private domain traffic” multi-
purpose cloud living platform. In order to meet customer
needs, retailers build the digital connection of people, goods
and market place, making transaction through intelligent
operation and automated transactions, and completely
shift from seller-oriented information to customer-oriented
digitization. Through digitization of customer, commodity,
marketing and supply chain, the operator could meet
customer needs by data combination, analysis and
decision. This will enhance operational efficiency, sales
technique optimization and core value reconstruction. To
further promote the efficient integration and core value
development of the entire supply chain such as commodity
production, circulation and supporting services. In 2020,
“digitalization” has not only surpassed “new retailing” and
“smart retailing”, it has even surpassed network technology
in the business world. The pandemic has indirectly promoted
the improvement of digital service standards and the urgency
of enterprises to apply digital technology.

In 2020, the economy of Guangxi’s region showed a good
momentum of recovery and improvement. The region’s
GDP was RMB2,215.7 billion, an increase of 3.7% YOY.
The condition of agricultural production is good. The annual
value of agriculture, pasturage and fishery was increased by
5.0% YQY. The annual grain output was 13.7 million tons, an
increase of 2.9% YOY. Industrial production has accelerated
significantly, and the output of major products has increased
rapidly. The annual incremental value of industrial enterprises
over the threshold was increased by 1.2% YOY. From the
perspective of major industries, six out of the total ten major
industries have recorded growth. In terms of products, 18
products achieved positive output growth. Service industry
is growing steadily, and the emerging service industry was
gaining momentum. The value of the financial industry was
increased by 6.8%, the wholesale and retail industry was
increased by 3.1%, and the other service industry was
increased by 7.6%. Consumer prices rose moderately, while
industrial producer prices fell slightly. The consumer price
of the whole year was increased by 2.8% YOY. Residents’
income has grown steadily and the employment condition
was stable. The annual average disposable income of
residents in the district was RMB24,562 per person, or 2.4%
after deducting price factors.

RREFEERHEBEL[ERE+T
BHERIBYRENTRER [HFE
R AXEY - EHEFE BEE
W RLEE LEREISEZME
Ao [EBREE] - BT HEBEES
K ZEBREA B SOEME
- SRERENEPLERS @ BIE
fegeEERPONBERCERNER
RRLHEAY - BBEEELL
BamEAME - TN - HEE
fEE2RBEHELC  UBEFRS
TZERDORE  RERUAERES
BEHOMANERERBRRRERLE
MEREH TEERE(L  HOEE
B E—SHBARLEE RAR
RERBSEHERSHEA - 85
BEEE - 2020F ' [#Al] TR
EHAT[HEEINMBEETE] &
EEKBY T R REREERT
HISEMEIR - TERBEEZKMIES
TEACIRFBRENRT - MR EE
FE MBI ERAMABIIE -

2020 F B & @ A B B E 2 IR IR
ME - RARTES - 2BRAEEL
BEAR22 156187 ' Lk EFER
37% c RELERBRYT  TEL
ERLT - 2F BMBURELNEL &
FIBREE5.0% > 2FRRERBEE1,370
BN L EFER20% c TE¥AE
BHENR  TEEREERRER -
PEMREN ETEEINMEL EFIER
1.2% - WEBITERE - +REZ
THEFR - SRITEERER - X
EEMKE  1SEERESERIEL
R RBEFRER  HERB
E¥RRFPRT - oHMERNEEER
6.8% HEFMTEHERI A% &
RS ERERT7.6% - ERHEEBER
B ERR  TEAEEEEBR/NDET
o 2FFERBBERL EF LK
28% - BERIWAFREBER  BEF
BET 2F2REREBAFHAX
BEUR A AR #E24,5627T @ HIBREBIEHE
ZERER2.4% °

EEREERERAF —TTFFR 23



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

24

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, the annual
GDP of China of 2020 reached approximately RMB102
trillion, an increase of 2.3% YOY.

In the whole year, the total retail sales of consumer goods
were approximately RMB39.2 trillion, a YOY decrease of
3.9%. Among them, the retail sales of consumer goods
by enterprises over the threshold size were approximately
RMB14.3 trillion, a YOY decrease of 1.9%. According to
the location of business units, retail sales of consumer
goods in city were approximately RMB33.9 trillion, a YOY
decrease of 4.0%; retail sales of consumer goods in rural
areas were approximately RMB5.3 trillion, a YOY decrease
of 3.2%. In terms of consumption patterns, catering revenue
was approximately RMB4.0 ftrillion, a decrease of 16.6%;
retail sales of goods were approximately RMB35.2 trillion,
a decrease of 2.3%. The retail sales of communications
equipment, cosmetics, and goldsmith and jewellery products
of over the threshold units were increased by 26.0%, 21.2%,
and 17.3% respectively YOY. During the year, online retail
sales across the country reached RMB11.8 trillion, a YOY
increase of 10.9%. Among them, the online retail sales of
physical goods was RMB9.8 trillion, an increase of 14.8%,
accounting for 24.9% of the total retail sales of consumer
goods, an increase of 4.2% YOY. Among the online retail
sales of physical goods, eat, wear and use consumer goods
were increased by 30.6%, 5.8% and 16.2% respectively.
By retail format, the retail sales of supermarkets in above
the threshold units were increased by 3.1% YQOY during
the period, while department stores, specialty stores, and
exclusive stores decreased by 9.8%, 5.4%, and 1.4%,
respectively.

In general, China’s export trade has been severely impacted
by the sharp decline in international market demand in 2020.
In order to help some export trader to tide over the crisis, all
provinces have introduced targeted policies and measures
on the inner circle economy where exports are transferred
to domestic sales. The impact of the pandemic on foreign
trade has shifted to the demand side. The transfer of
export products to domestic sales will further enrich market
supply, meet new consumer demand, increase consumer
choice, promote consumption upgrades, and help promote
the overall recovery of the consumer market. With the
establishment of a new development pattern with the internal
circulation policy as the main body and the dual circulation
policy mutually supplementing each other, policies to expand
domestic demand and promote consumption will continue to
exert force. The consumer market will recover steadily, and it
is expected to rebound to a positive trend.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB428.1 million, representing
a YOY decrease of approximately 33.7%. Gross profit
amounted to approximately RMB42.7 million, representing
a YOY decrease of approximately 45.7%. Loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately RMB194.5
million, representing an YOY increase of 271.5%. There were
9 stores and 2 shopping malls at the end of the year. During
the year, there were closure of 3 stores, namely Shajing
store, Sanlian store and Xixiang store. Net loss increased
attributable to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in
China since January 2020, the infant stage of operation
and competitive business environment of shopping malls
operation, the additional expenses on forfeiture of rental
deposit and written off of leasehold improvements upon
closure of three stores, and impairment loss on non-financial
assets. The main task was reduction of expenditure to
keep resources for future challenge during the year. Sales
of goods decreased by approximately RMB182.9 million,
commissions income from concessionaire decreased by
approximately RMB45.8 million, rental income from sub-
leasing of shop premises increased by RMB6.3 million,
rental income from investment properties decreased by
approximately RMB2.0 million, rental income from sub-
leasing of shopping malls increased by approximately of
RMB8.1 million, and interest income from financing services
decreased by approximately RMB0.9 million. The Group has
adopted positive operating strategy with value-added service
in retail stores, and continuously exploring and developing
other potential profit opportunities and planned for the
expansion of store and shopping mall network.

Recapping on the year of 2020, the Group has the following
operation highlights.
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Sales of supermarkets and concessionaire
have fallen, gross profit from sales has been
affected

The local governments of Guangdong and Guangxi
and merchants distributed discount spending
vouchers which are helpful to retail businesses in
supermarkets and department stores. However, the
persistent of the pandemic has forced resident’s
spending more cautious, sales have fallen. The
Group implemented a series of remedial measures.
In terms of display layout, it is planned to uplift the
shelves to enhance the visual feeling, and increase
the variety in the daily sundries category to boost
sales. In addition, we introduce some popular cooked
food and pastry to attract customers through market
research. In terms of commodity management, we
focus on the essence of commodities and perform
fine management. By enhancing marketing activities
and promotion leaflets, we set sales targets, order
management, display method, publicity, follow-up
procedure and results review of popular products,
and push forward seasonal and thematic promotion
campaign in stores. By encouraging concessionaires/
vendors promotional sales, we not only to create
sales for the supermarket section, but also solve the
problem of manpower shortage. Expanding online
sales by promoting the in-house developed online
sales channel and external online sales platform.
The main reason for the gross profit gap is decline in
sales. Increase sales, look for high-margin products
in the market to introduce special promotions,
increase vendor activities and gift promotions, plan
promotional activities to obtain thin profits but quicker
sales, and carry out product management to speed
up product turnover which in return reduce maturity
arrival, minimize damaged goods, and avoid price
cuts.
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Improving the furnishings of shopping malls,
introducing catering and entertaining tenants
in stores

The group has been transforming the business model
by shifting focus on sales of goods from traditional
supermarkets to sub-leasing business. Therefore,
the shopping center strengthens decoration
spirit to attract online community discussion, and
incorporates amusement facilities to highlight
the family experience and youthful vitality. Using
vacant shops for temporary promotional activities
and earning additional income. Adding fragrance
dispenser and decorating green plants in toilets
to enhance the style of the mall. Providing an
“professional service room” amenity for shoppers free
consultation service. During the year, the shopping
malls have been undergoing four types of changes.
Standardize operations for system construction,
initiate system compilation and active team building
to increase training and market research. Target
management, rent collection is strictly controlled
to strengthen cash flow. Enhance operating
diversification to increase other income. Vacant shops
pending for business invitation, commencement
and renovation will be closely followed-up to reduce
operating losses. Improve products quality, conduct
customer satisfaction surveys, and formulate
improvement plans. Strengthen quality inspection and
supervision, and emphasize on quality stores.

Closure of stores to reduce operational risks,
renovation enhancement of major stores to
increase store attractiveness

Upon the expiration of the lease agreement in Xixiang
Store, the group decided not to renew the contract
due to the rapid deterioration of the surrounding
business environment during the year. Besides, due
to declining geographical advantage and surrounding
environmental factors, the performance of Sanlian
Store and Shajing Store was badly affected. The
Group has decided to terminate the lease agreements
before expiry of lease term after granting waiver for
compensation of early termination from the respective
landlords.
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The group continues to enhance and adjust its
stores layout to accommodate with the new retail
era. In the food section, the shelves have been
uplift and adjusted to make the overall display more
coordinated and leisurable, and more convenient for
customers to select goods. In the daily necessities
section, the shelves are rearranged to expand the
best-selling categories of lady products. In the fresh
food section, key items are reviewed every weekend
to ensure the best price offered to customers.
Meat stalls and vegetables are selling well when the
pandemic is severe. All in all, we have increased
the product variety for food and daily necessities,
relocated the self-service cash counters, introduced
renowned daily necessities brand name, and
increased the number of food shelves and product
variety to refresh the outlook of sales floor.

Implement measures to increase revenue,
reduce distribution and administration
expenditure

To open up revenue sources, the store and operation
department attach great importance to sales,
diversification, customer flow, marketing, and Online
and Offline (020) work; enrich online brands and
varieties. In addition, the marketing department
expands group purchases, develops member group,
and promotes the sales of shopping cards by
focusing on information and intelligence resources.
Natural loss of employees, reducing personnel
complexity, and reducing labor costs. Managing
vacant shelves, idle store and new business invitation,
improving area utilization and floor efficiency, making
full use of physical space to improve efficiency, and
properly resolve defective brands in advance.

To reduce expenditure, all unnecessary expenses will
be cut down. Promote mobile office, paperless office,
and information office. Strict control on the approval
procedures of all expenses and expenditure. Simplify
organizational structure and personnel structure, fair
and efficient appraisal system. Improve the monthly
performance appraisal report of the manager of the
supermarket and operation department personnel.
Improve work efficiency and enforcement. Advocate
self-discipline and professional ethics to help
execution and sense of responsibility.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Active development in online sales channel
to expand customer base

Currently, Baijiahua’s O20 business is divided into
two aspects: private and public domain. Private
domain refers to our Baijiahua Mini Program (“Mini
Program”) Mall. Public domain encompasses the
three mainstream 020 e-commerce platform of
Meituan, Ele.me and Jingdong. Since February,
online sales have been going up. The three major
020 platforms of Meituan, JD Daojia, and Ele.me
have already been connected and launched. Next,
we will refine system operations, and improve sales
turnover and customer experience. For livestreaming,
as there is no live broadcast team and customers
have not developed their live shopping habits, large
scale investment has not yet been made. Soon, we
will try team purchase activities to increase customer
adhesiveness and increase sales. The Group tries
to make reference to other e-commerce provider
to integrate entertainment and social elements into
e-commerce operations. Through the “social +
e-commerce” model, more users can share benefits
with fun and enjoy a new shopping experience.
Activate the Mini Program shopping mall module and
bring all merchants to the Mini Program, increase the
overall sales atmosphere, and drive the sales of the
Group and merchants.
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The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the Group’s response

Due to the impact of the pandemic, people are
confined at home to minimize unnecessary outings.
Coupled with concerns about the risk of infection
in closed spaces such as shopping arcades and
shopping malls, the customer flow in retail industry
has been mostly affected. The customer base of
supermarkets mainly comes from the residents’
demand for daily necessities, but the frequency
of purchases of materials has been decreased. At
the same time, the purchase demand is competed
with online shopping and the customer flow of
supermarket is greatly affected. The Group managed
inventory level, ensured adequate supply, food safety
and daily disinfection work in supermarkets to combat
the pandemic. In addition, the group has developed
online home delivery business, and worked with
third-party platforms to build online ordering and
distribution network to meet the needs of people
to buy fresh daily necessities online. The impact to
online shopping malls is minimal.

Revenue for the year of 2020 dropped by 33.7%.
Among them, supermarket and concessionaire
revenue fell by 42.3% and 58.4% respectively, and
shopping mall revenue increased by 15.3%. For
supermarkets, although the customer flow is affected,
future revenue is expected to be flat or even grow.
The main reason is that the demand for catering and
daily necessities of the people is still strong. Although
the frequency of personal purchases of materials
has decreased, the number of single purchases
has increased, and the online home delivery service
has been launched. The impact on the income of
supermarket stores is not very significant.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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There are factors affecting the decline in corporate
turnover. The main reasons for the impact on the
sales are logistics, the restriction on staff crew to
attend duty, the closure of business premises, and
the decline in customer demand. Logistics have
a major impact on supermarkets and department
stores. Insufficient quantity of stocks, difficulties in
delivery to customers, and insufficient manpower for
order delivery are the main challenges. In the short
term, industry inventory sharing, through cross-
industry cooperation, can assist other industries
to share their inventory and alleviate procurement
problems. In the long run, the Group will plan the
supply chain strategic network to improve the
comprehensive capabilities of supply adequacy,
logistics timeliness, and digital transformation.

The group has no funding risk in the coming 12
months. The financial pressure of the Group comes
from labor cost, rental expenditures and payment to
suppliers. Plan to improve cash flow, obtain provision
of credit and preferential interest rate with existing
banks. In order to protect the business environment
of the retail industry, local governments have issued
relevant financial policies or measures. The Group
actively communicates with financial institutions,
seeks the policy privilege offered by regulatory
agencies, and obtains credit support. The Group took
measures to reduce costs, such as reducing staff
and salaries, to alleviate pressure, complying with
relevant laws and regulations, and reduce risks. New
financing, including short-term loans, can be obtained
when funds are tight to solve short-term liquidity
problems under the pandemic.
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The Group has managed working capital, including
formulating cash flow forecasts and monitoring
mechanisms, and assessed the impact of potential
cash shortages in advance. Working capital
management will be made through early negotiation
with upstream and downstream partners. On one
hand, the Group strived to shorten the collection
time of accounts receivable with downstream and
minimize the scale of receivables, and on the other
hand, strived for longer credit period with upstream
suppliers. Actively manage inventory levels, digest
inventory or minimize the inventory level to ease the
liquidity risk and avoid the financial pressure caused
by excessive inventory. Dispose of non-core assets to
improve tight cash flow. Identify the under-performing
businesses and/or non-core assets of the company.
By improving these businesses or selling these
assets, it can reduce potential losses during instable
period. As such, the Group can keep funds and
use resources to concentrate on maintaining major
business operations.

The Group has closely contacted with the landlord
as soon as possible, negotiated the closure, and
actively obtained rent reduction or deferral during
the closure period; The Group communicated with
the supplier to solve the problems and difficulties,
and strive to extend the payment cycle. The Group
communicates with the financial institution to maintain
good relationship and seek credit support. By
lowering loan interest rates, increasing credit loans
and term loans, the Group will strive for preferential
financing conditions to reduce the pressure on cash
flow related to principal and interest repayment. The
Group attends closely to relevant policies issued by
government, such as preferential policies such as
tax reduction or extension, social security refund
or deferred payment. For the Group employees,
establish an employee protection mechanism to
stabilize labour force. Under legal circumstances,
advise the staff to take holidays or cut salaries, and
work with employees to overcome difficulties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

(C)

OUTLOOK

During the year, the Group has formulated a series
of measure to enhance sales turnover and to avoid
unnecessary costs, so as to achieve management target.
Moreover, the Group aimed to consolidate the existing
stores by reform and innovation. By this, improvement
in sales mix, upgrade brand name, enhance shopping
experience to provide new shopping experience to
customers.

In addition, the Group has explored new commercial retail
mode, including shopping mall, trial experience, internet
plus, and catering business. With the online resource and
shopping outlets, and the synergy of online offline capacity,
the Group is able to provide a one-stop shopping experience
to customers.

The year 2021 has both opportunity and challenge existed,
the Group has prepared to cope with all difficulties, to make
use of our core competency in the industry.

Looking ahead, China is still under the fast pace of
development stage. The macro-economic condition
has significant impact to the industry. Rapid growth in
information technology has direct and critical effect to the
industry. The directors are confident towards the future.
The mission of the Group is to become one of the major
operators in the retail industry.
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EEERE D (E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately RMB428.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease
of 33.7% as compared to approximately RMB645.3 million in the
corresponding period of 2019. The drop was principally attributable
from the decrease in sales of goods of approximately RMB182.9
million, the decrease in commission from concessionaire sales
of approximately RMB45.8 million, the decrease in rental income
from investment properties of approximately RMB2.0 million,
and decrease in interest income from financing services of
approximately RMB0.9 million. However, there were increase in
rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises of approximately
RMB6.3 million and increase in rental income from subleasing of
shopping malls of approximately RMB8.1 million, which altogether
partly offset the overall decrease of income.

Sales of goods decreased by 42.3% to RMB249.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB432.8 million in the
corresponding period of 2019, principally due to the outbreak
of new pandemic in Mainland China which imposed measures
including the lockdown of cities and borders and the management
of people flow within community. This reduced the customer flow
in stores and the Group has closed three stores in response to
the pandemic during the period. Besides, the Group has adjusted
the sales floor area of direct sales to introduce more leisure
experiencing shopping mode. Sales of goods as a percentage
of the Group’s total revenue was 58.4% for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared to 67.0% in the corresponding period
of 2019.

Commission from concessionaire sales dropped by 58.4% to
RMB32.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB78.5 million in the corresponding period of 2019, mainly due
to outbreak of pandemic and closure of three stores. Commission
from concessionaire sales as a percentage of the Group’s total
revenue was 7.6% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared to 12.2% for the corresponding period of 2019.

Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises up by 9.7%
to RMB70.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB64.6 million for the corresponding period in 2019, mainly due
to renewal of some existing tenancy agreements and expansion
of sales floor area. Rental income as a percentage of the Group’s
total revenue was 16.6% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
compared to 10.0% for the corresponding period of 2019.
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Rental income from sub-leasing of a shopping mall increased by
15.3% of RMB61.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
as compared with RMB52.9 million for the corresponding period
in 2019 due to (i) the commencement of business of Shenzhen
Guanlan shopping mall in the last quarter of 2019; and (ii) the
entering into mature stage of operation of the Shenzhen Bantian
shopping mall during the period. Rental income from sub-leasing of
a shopping mall as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue was
14.2% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to 8.2%
for the corresponding period of 2019.

Rental income from investment properties down by 20.8% to
RMB7.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB9.5
million for the corresponding period in 2019, mainly due to early
termination of two tenancies which are still pending for leasing.
Rental income from investment properties as a percentage of the
Group’s total revenue was 1.8% for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared to 1.5% for the corresponding period of 2019.

Interest income from financing services down by 12.8% to RMB6.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB6.9 million
for the corresponding period in 2019, mainly due to the decrease
in business of the major customer which has been affected by the
pandemic. Interest income from financing services as a percentage
of the Group’s total revenue was 1.4% for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared to 1.1% for the corresponding period
of 2019.

Purchase of and changes in inventories

Purchase of and changes in inventories amounted to RMB207.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a
decrease of 41.5% as compared with RMB354.2 million in the
corresponding period of 2019, mainly due to decrease in sales
of goods. As a percentage of sales of goods, purchase of and
changes in inventories was 82.9% for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared with 81.8% in the same period of 2019.

Other operating income

Other operating income increased by 11.4% to RMB73.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB65.7 million
in the corresponding period in 2019, mainly due to increase in
government subsidies, net gain on disposal on termination of
lease, and rent concession from some of the stores. Nevertheless,
decrease in bank interest income and administration and
management fee income of approximately RMB2.9 million and
RMB10.1 million respectively have largely offset the overall
increase.

SEEEMENHSRABE=ZS=_ZF
+—A=+—RHLEFEHAREE1008
T =B NAFEEPHARES200E T
#HN15.3% ° EZR()RINERE D F L
ERZZE-NFEOFHRAZE - K(i)prY
WE%%¢®E%?&A&%%E%%%
W DHEEWERSHKAGEE-_Z—
TF+-_A=Z=+—HLEFEAEEBKA
MBEDEAE142%  M_ZE—NEREAE
8.2% °

REWER W AR —LFRHAHA
REQSOE LW A 20.8%EHE S _TF
+ A=+ HLEFEHARETS0E T -
TERMRMBEFIRATRL Mz ERDEFRED
s - BREBEYMERSWAGREE_T_TF
T A=+ BULHFEAEELRKRANE S
e B1.8% M —ZE—NERBEIE1.5% °

KEEBBRBEZFNEWRABR-Z— ﬂiﬂﬁﬂ
PAREBCIEBTLR V128N EHE T =
TEF+A=T—HIEFEHNARKEG00E
T EEEREIERPIEBIEBRAAM
B REBERRE2AHNEBALERHEF
—ZEF+ A=+ BHILEFEAERLZKRA
MBI AE1.4%  M_ZE—LFRHHA A
1.1% °

FERBRE

HE2—_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIEFE " &

‘%xﬁ%& """"" FeBEHOARK2E7208 T &
—NERPHAREES(ES,4208 TR

m5% FTERREEER TRITE - B2
—E-TF+_AZ+—HILEFE  FER
B2 EHEEERB AL A82.9% ' =
T—NFREE81.8% °

H & WA

HigE AR T — niﬂﬁﬁAEm
6,570 B T M1 A% EHE T _BF

+=-A=+-— EtEE%AEMmm%
JC EEAEMNEMBAEBRA - KRIEFE

BEFEE - RBOERERBEHER®
FEC - BIRITHBRARITERERERA

DRIT B AR 2908 7T K4 ARKE1,010
BT R D FHIE -

4\

BEERARAR —ZTE-TEER 35



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEERE D (E)

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased by 24.9% to RMB80.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB107.0 million in the
corresponding period of 2019, primarily due to the closure of three
stores and streamline of manpower during the year.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased by 6.5% to RMB89.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from RMB95.5 million
in the corresponding period of 2019, primarily due to the closure of
three stores during the year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment increased by 5.5%
to RMB48.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
RMB45.7 million in the corresponding period in 2019. The increase
was mainly due to enhancement of main stores in Shenzhen and the
final construction works of Shenzhen Guanlan shopping mall.

Impairment loss on loan receivables

Impairment loss on loan receivables of approximately RMB2.1
million in the year ended 31 December 2020 represented expected
credit loss on loan receivables from financing business during the
period.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses increased by approximately RMB126.1
million, from RMB5.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to RMB131.6 million in the corresponding period of 2020.
This was primarily due to forfeiture of rental deposit and written
off of leasehold improvements of approximately RMBO0.6 million
and approximately RMB36.2 million respectively upon closure
of three stores, and impairment loss on non-financial assets of
approximately RMB89.9 million during the year.

Finance costs

Finance costs, arising from the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16,
decreased by approximately RMB5.9 million, from approximately
RMB51.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB45.9 million in the corresponding period of
2020, primarily due to the closure of three stores during the year.

Finance costs arising from borrowings during the year was
approximately RMBO0.9 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense amounted to approximately RMBO0.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease
of 63.7% from approximately RMB2.6 million in the corresponding
period of 2019, mainly due to decrease of operating profit before
tax. The effective tax rate applicable to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were 25% for general subsidiaries
(15% for Guangxi subsidiary). In addition, pursuant to the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law, the Group is liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by subsidiaries established in China. The
applicable tax rate is 10%.

Loss attributable to Shareholders of the Company

As a result of the aforementioned, loss attributable to Shareholders
amounted to approximately RMB194.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared with loss of approximately RMB52.3
million in the corresponding period of 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB76.6 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB117.7 million), while the restricted bank deposits
amounted to approximately RMB2.0 million (31 December 2019:
RMB Nil). Total borrowings of the Group included bank loans
of approximately RMB66.9 million as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a net current liabilities
of approximately RMB71.7 million, as compared to amount of
approximately RMB72.9 million as at 31 December 2019. As at 31
December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
1.55 (31 December 2019: 1.06), which was calculated on the basis
of the net debt divided by total equity. Net debt was calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current bank loans and
lease liabilities) less total cash (including cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposit).

Pri8®iR

FE#AIA T - NFRBHARE260
ELRLETINEHE_T_TF+_A
=t+—HUEFEHAREOET EEHRN
BRET15 mmm%mﬂﬂd%ﬁ HEZT—
ZF+-_A=+—HLEFE  BARAEE
— R BRI ERTE B25% (E X
B15%) o o - RIBERBECEMEHRE
$EIMWF¢IﬁiMW% AIFTD IR &Y
AR BB TESR - BAFHEAE10% °

RAB)EERREEEE
ARttt #2-_FT_FTF+_-H
St+t-BLEFERREBBEROARY
189,450 7T - KT NFRPEBEROA
R#5,230& T A PTIE N -

RBEESRMBEER

R-ZZTE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H K&£H
RSR 1T R IR & 4 8 4 A R % 76,600,000
T(ZE—NWEF+A=+—8: HAR
¥ 117,700,000 7T ) * i % BR &l 4R 17 77 3K
AR #¥2000,000c(ZE—LF+=A
=t+t—HB: AREBE) R-_Z-_ZTF+=
=t+—8 AEEEFEERFRITER
# AR 66,900,000t (ZFE—NF+=A
=—t+—H8: AR#®E) -

R-ZE-_FTF+_A=+—8 AEEHOR
FHEEFEYARET1,700,0007T © MR
E-AFF+_A=Z+—BHZ&BEAAHARE
72,900,000 e R=ZZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—

B AEENABLE (MwSM:Z it
F+ZA=+—H :1.06) - ERFELUFE
B AER °ﬁ§i%%§%ﬁﬂ@§+ T ERFER

RBE(BRRBHMIERBRITERNEER
BIRERHEB(ERRENRSFEDN
RZRHIMIRITER) BN E SN
B FEE -

4\

BEZERERAR —TTFFR 37



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENWE D ()

REVENUE - TURNOVER

1.4%

1.8%

16.6%

12.2%

67.0%

2020 2019

—EB-FF —TOF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARS®TT ARETT

O Sales of goods HEEm 249,865 432,804
O Commissions from concessionaire sales HEHEEMSAES 32,705 78,540
O Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises % #8542 89 S WA 70,922 64,629
® Rental income from investment properties HEYENBSIWA 7,545 9,528
® Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls S RSB XS WA 61,015 52,940
® Interest income from financing services KBS RRE 2T BUA 6,005 6,888
428,057 645,329
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEN WK ()

GROSS PROCEEDS Fri8FIEEEE
11% 0.5% 0%

9.3%

4.2%

34.2%

38.0%

55.2%

2020 2019
—EB-FF —TOF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTET

O Sales of goods HEEMm 249,865 432,804
O Concessionaire sales EHEHE 263,019 699,297
© Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises 2 /54X aH S KA 70,922 64,629
® Rental income from investment properties WEMENHRS KA 7,545 9,528
® Rental income from sub-leasing of shopping malls 7 A IS WX TH S KA 61,015 52,940
® Interest income from financing services AL ZF B WA 6,005 6,888

658,371 1,266,086

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER PSR EMER
INFORMATION
Risk Management [ B B 2

The activities of the Group expose to a variety of financial risks, ARE@BEKEZLEMERR @ SEIER
including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and  pg - FEREK - MZERAB LR REBESERE °
liquidity risk.

(i) Foreign exchange risk (i) HINGEE LB
The Group has operation in the PRC so that the majority REBRPREQLER  ARER K
of the Group’s revenue, expenses and cash flows are HAWA - BT RBEEEHUAR
denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities of the Group Mg MAEBABDEERAE
are mostly denominated in RMB or HK$. Any significant AN REE SR TTEHE o INEEH AR
exchange rate fluctuations of foreign currencies against RMB WPE R (TR E AR B A e A E E
may have financial impact to the Group. R TR S o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)
Risk Management (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk

For the operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk. Most of the sales transactions
were settled in cash basis or by credit card payment (or
through online payment platforms). Credit risk on cash and
bank balances is mitigated as cash is deposited in banks of
high credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
loan receivables from financing businesses. In respect of
loan receivables, the Group’s policy is that all customers
who wish to obtain loans from the Group are subject to
management review. The Group holds collaterals directly or
indirectly to cover its risks associated with loan receivables.

The credit and investment policies have been followed by
the Group since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises on
cash and bank balances and loan receivables. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated a policy to
manage the interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and bank
balances and have available funding to meet its working
capital requirements. The Group’s liquidity is dependent
upon the cash received from its customers. The directors of
the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

The Group did not use any financial instrument for hedging
purposes and the Group did not have any hedging instrument
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employees And Remuneration Policy

For the year ended December 2020, the Group had 721 full
time employees in average in the mainland China and Hong
Kong. The Group continues to recruit high calibre individuals
and provide continuing education and training for employees to
help upgrading their skills and knowledge as well as developing
team spirit on an on-going basis. During the year, total staff costs
were approximately RMB80.4 million. Competitive remuneration
packages are structured to commensurate with reference
to individual responsibilities, qualification, experience and
performance.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2020, capital expenditures
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB80.1 million (2019: approximately RMB130.3
million).

Changes of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of investment
properties amounted to approximately RMB266.8 million (2019:
RMB Nil) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans
granted in relation to the Group’s retail business.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments
contracted, but not provided for, amounting to approximately
RMB8.6 million (2019: approximately RMB19.3 million).

Dividend policy

Under the Dividend Policy, the declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the discretion of the Board in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the articles of association of the Company
and will be dependent upon the Group’s current and recent financial
performance, cash flow position, working capital requirements and
expenditure plan, restriction on distribution of dividends under the
relevant laws, rules and regulations, and any other factors that the
Board deems appropriate.

In determining any dividend amount for a particular year or
interim period, the Board will also take into account, inter alia, the
consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company for
the year or period, dividend distributed during the year, and the
retained profits available.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically. There can
be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period or at all.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEENWE D ()

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)

Gross
floor area
Commence (sq.m.)

operation on Storey LM
Retail stores HREERE B8 (F5K)

EEERRAEMER (&)

Average of daily Average of daily
transactions transactions
(Supermarket) (Department store)  Estimated no. of
BHYHRZHE SHFHYRSZHA visitors per day
(&) (A8) CHESELES =
FY20 FY19 FY20 FY19 FY20 FY19
2020F 2019F  2020%F 20194 2020 2019F

Xixiang i 1/10/1997 3 8,806
Shajing Wi 1/5/1999 5 20,978
Songgang N 1/1/2001 5 23,134
Longhua BEE 1/11/2001 5 24,549
Gongming N 1/9/2002 4 21,843
Shiyan a5 1/1/2007 1 5,852
Yanbu g7 1/1/2008 2 7,987
Dashatian KPP H 1/1/2009 3 8,500
Sanlian — 5/12/2009 4 9,600
Taoyuan R 30/12/2009 4 14,493
Bantian RA 1/12/2017 12,927
Guanlan BR 21/12/2019 1 1,674

1,126 3,250 8 19 1,633 4,740
917 1,737 130 312 1,329 2,971

3,715 3,096 247 594 5,387 5,349
2,509 2,281 344 825 3,639 4,504
5,172 4,702 361 866 7,499 8,073
3,983 3,983 247 593 5,775 6,635
1,696 1,642 2 4 2,460 2,242
2,330 2,330 39 93 3,378 3,514

899 1,730 = = 1,304 2,509
2,440 2,343 70 169 3,538 3,642
3,071 2,792 - = 4,453 4,048
4,773 = - = 6,921 =

Gross proceeds

Gross proceeds
per operation area
Gross proceeds per day Average value
per day BHELERE per transaction

FrERRRE BRAEREAE FresERE BRR5V19E

(RMB million)
Retail stores (AR¥BETR)
FY20 FY19

(RMB thousand) (RMB) (RMB)
(ARET) (ARET) (AR¥7T)
FY20 FY19  FY20 FY19  FY20 FY19

2020  2019F 2020  2019F 2020  2019F 2020 20194

Xixiang i 6.1 48.5 16.8 132.9 2.1 16.6 61.1 42.4
Shajing DI 12.1 77.9 33.1 2135 1.7 10.7 128.2 94.5
Songgang N 63.4 191.4 173.8 524.4 9.1 27.4 75.4 112.7
Longhua Bt 20.8 229.7 57.1 629.4 2.7 30.1 39.5 145.9
Gongming N 103.9 276.1 284.6 756.6 14.5 38.7 92.7 114.4
Shiyan RE 187.2 212.9 512.8 583.4 109.2 124.2 122.5 112.5
Yanbu g 16.1 20.9 44,0 57.3 7.4 9.6 37.9 28.5
Dashatian ANA 51.7 50.0 1415 137.1 30.3 29.4 58.4 52.8
Sanlian =B 3.9 19.5 10.7 53.3 1.7 8.5 33.4 47.6
Taoyuan B 57.9 52.2 158.7 143.0 16.2 14.6 60.8 50.7
Bantian R 36.0 45.1 98.5 123.5 36.6 13.8 53.0 34.1
Guanlan BR 31.4 - 86.1 = 28.8 = 60.8 =
Note: BsE -

The above-mentioned are unaudited figures and based on internal records.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Group fully acknowledges its obligations to its shareholders and
investors. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
has been in strict compliance with the applicable legal and
regulatory requirements of domestic or foreign securities regulatory
authorities and has been devoted to improving the transparency of
its corporate governance and the quality of information disclosure.
The Group also attaches great importance on communication with
its shareholders and strives to ensure the timeliness, completeness
and accuracy of its information disclosure to its shareholders and
investors and to the protection the interests of investors. The Board
has strictly complied with the principles of corporate governance
and is dedicated to improving the management quality of the
Company and the standard of corporate governance continually in
order to protect and enhance value for shareholders. To this end,
the Company adopted the principles in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
with the aim of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group. Such adoption was reflected in the Company’s Articles
of Association, internal rules and regulations and the corporate
governance implementation practices.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the
year ended 31 December 2020 as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, except for the following deviations:

Code provision E.1.2 of the Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhuang Lu
Kun, the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 4 June 2020 due to his
other business engagements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

BOARD

The Board consists of six Directors, of whom three are executive
Directors including the chairman of the Board and three of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors. Profiles and particulars
of the chairman of the Company and other Directors are set out
under the section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior
Management”. The term of service of each executive Director
(Independent Non-executive Director) is three years (two years).
Corresponding to the term of service, all executive Directors have
entered into service contracts, which are valid for a term of 3 years
(two years for Independent Non-executive Directors) and renewable
subject to the applicable laws. The names of Directors referred
herein are members of the fourteenth session of the Board. The
principal responsibilities of the Board include:

= to formulate overall strategies, monitor operating and
financial performance and determine proper policies to
manage risks exposures arising in the course of achieving
the Group’s strategic goals;

= to oversee and review the Company’s internal control
system;

= to be ultimately responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company and to assess the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible way in respect of the interim
and annual reports of the Company, other price-sensitive
announcements and disclosure of financial information
pursuant to the Listing Rules, reports submitted to the
regulatory authorities and information disclosure pursuant to
legal requirements;

- the executive Directors/management in charge of various
aspects of the operations of the Company are responsible
for the management of daily operations of the Company.
The Board is responsible for setting and handling policies,
financial and formulating affairs affecting the overall
strategy of the Company, including financial statements,
dividends policy, material changes to accounting policies,
annual operating budget, material contracts, key finance
arrangements, major investments and risk management
policies;

- the management has received clear guidelines and
instructions in respect of their authorities, especially under
all circumstances to report to the Board and to seek Board’s
approval prior to making any decision or entering into any
commitment on behalf of the Company; and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

BOARD (Continued)

- to review the responsibilities and authorities delegated to the
executive Directors/management on a regular basis and to
ensure such arrangements are appropriate.

The members of the Board fully acknowledge their own duties
and obligations in treating all shareholders on an equal basis and
protecting the interests of all investors. The Company ensures that
documents and information relating to the businesses of the Group
are provided to Board members on a timely basis. The Independent
Non-executive Directors perform their duties in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Company has
received confirmation letters from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Director in respect of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at least one-
third of the Directors shall retire by rotation at the annual general
meeting and all newly appointed Directors will have to retire at the
next annual general meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible to
offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and officers against
losses or liabilities sustained or incurred from execution of their
duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis or
any intervals as deemed appropriate by the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met periodically to review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

EE2(H)
-  EHRNRENTES EBAER
BERBE MBE  URERZSFLZHE
EXeNBxsHANSRYSEELETE
BERRMREMEREENGENEERE
%o ARARRERAESEKBIRHEEH
AEBEBOXMEREN - BIUIFATES
BRARAERRIINTREORS - AR
EARBMBERERNGD - ARFCERESR
B IFAITEFRE EHARRAIFIABGEME
SFHBLH D BEHNERS -

REARNRABERMAR  RRBEFRKE L
RIZDZ-EFARESE  MABHZE
FEEHERTERRBFREER - RE
ES0EREREMT -

EENERBENEE
ARREREERGRABEETRERES
HABEBERLEEMESEOERTE LB
BERR - HREBEDNEBFAEFTERRE
2R AR RETTIRGT

EEERIAE
EX2ARRETTRIED.3 A RAERIRIAE -

REEFEAR  EFSTEHRTEE - FHAN
RAMEERERBRREER  EERERE
BRI RSEREER ARABEEST
FRELEERETENRRRER - &F
BRETAIREEEEESINERRAREE
SPST AR IS A R R AN KBV E WA

?go

EEREERERAF —TTFFR 45



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from
2 July 2014 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate
governance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), talents, skills, knowledge,
length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate
decision of all Board appointments should be based on meritocracy
and the likely contributions that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee has reviewed such board
diversity policy in the year.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training confirmation of each director received for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is summarized below:

Directors

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun TR 4

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong HmRLE

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong H/MERE
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEBTES
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BB TAE

Mr. Sun Ju Vi BEEEE

Mr. Ai Ji N REHE
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are
allocated to three committees which operate under written terms of
reference. The composition of the committees up to the date of this
report is set out in the table below:

Directors

Committee

ENERES

Z88
ETEREENERRTGMTESEHA =@
EFFEHREEENZTEGHNT - HEAR
FHRARIEZEREGHORENT :

Audit Nomination
Committee

REZEE

Remuneration
Committee

FMzES

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (Chairman) — itREtss s (FEL) = = -
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong Hma it - Member X & =
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong NS = = =
Independent Non-executive BUYFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung RIRFE LA Chairman £ /& Member X 8 Member X 8
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BEERE Member {8  Chairman £/& Member X &
Mr. Ai Ji N REE Member X & Member f\&  Chairman Ef%
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

The Company has established an audit committee on 30 April
2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The audit committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors who together have substantial experience in
the fields of accounting, business, legal, corporate governance and
regulatory affairs. The audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company
as well as substantial exceptional items, internal controls and
financial reporting matters, which included a review on the audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020.

In addition, the audit committee also monitors the appointment of
the Company’s external independent auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management. In
addition, it has responsibility for reviewing and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of all the Directors and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The nomination committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and management of Board succession.
The responsibilities of the nomination committee are to determine
the criteria for identifying candidates suitably qualified and reviewing
nominations for the appointment of Directors to the Board.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i)
review the Board composition, develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors; (ii)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors; and (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess
regularly the diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable,
senior management prepared for Board positions under the
succession planning of the Company and the progress on achieving
diversity objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the year, in response to the amendment to the CG Code
effective on 1 January 2019, the Company has also adopted
the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy sets out the factors
for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to
the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to
the followings: character and integrity; qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;
diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18
years old or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;
requirements of independent non-executive directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and commitment in
respect of available time and relevant interest to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new directors and re-election
of directors at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will
review the Director Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

Attendance record of the Directors (including attendance by proxy)
is as follows:

REZEE(H)
ESRABRNEIRERZTHESUAR
RERRE LEERENEF - REZEE

REMNEERBRR(WER) - AERET
ZHR -
E=(BRZRRKRLFESE) WL FELEN

T

Attendance/Number of meetings

HERE,/ EHRE

Audit Remuneration

Board committee
meetings meetings
g ENZES
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun SR A 36 NATER
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong shBEE 66 NATER
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong FMERE 36 NATER
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRELE 6/6 3/3
Mr. Sun Ju Vi BEERE 5/6 2/3
Mr. Ai di YREE 6/6 3/3
COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo, is
a full time employee of the Company. During the year, he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors hereby confirm their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company complied
with the relevant laws and accounting standards and that the
Company would publish the financial statements of the Company
at the appropriate time. The responsibilities of external independent
auditor to the shareholders are set out on pages 74 to 77.

Independent
board
committee
meeting
BUEE
ZEg

Nomination
committee
meetings
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committee
meetings
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS IN APPENDIX 10 OF THE LISTING RULES
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions of the
Directors of the Company. After specific enquiries to the Directors,
the Board is pleased to confirm that all the Directors have fully
complied with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules during the year under review.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of external independent auditor and reviewing their respectively
were remuneration. During the year, fees paid of approximately
RMB1,020,000 were incurred by the Company to the external
independent auditor as service charge for its audit service of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to
facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and the senior
management of the Group (“Senior Management”). The Board
determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the
effectiveness of such systems as least annually, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management
Policy in providing directions in identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the Senior
Management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for those risks
considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has its risk management and internal control
department to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and in performing the internal audit functions for the Group
during the year. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of
internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed
for improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure
prompt remediation actions are taken.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had performed annual
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s
review on risk management and internal control systems; result of
internal audit work; the extent and frequency of communication
with the Board in relation to result of risk and internal control
review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Board considers the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems were effective during the year.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false
or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through
the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in
a clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Group has established an organizational structure, which sets
out the relevant operating policies and procedures, duties and
authorizations.

AUTHORIZATIONS AND CONTROLS

Executive directors and senior management have been delegated
the relevant authorizations in respect of corporate strategies,
policies and contracting liabilities. Budget controls and financial
reporting systems are formulated by relevant departments and are
subject to review by directors in charge. The Group has formulated
relevant procedures to assess, review and approve significant
capital and recurrent expenses, while operating results will be
compared against the budgets and reported to executive directors
on a regular basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

TRAINING ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

Directors and senior managements participate in internal control
training programmes provided by the Group, which are designed
to equip them with proper and full knowledge on internal controls,
and provide guidance to them to apply internal control systems on
a consistent basis.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM MANAGEMENT

The Group has put in place a comprehensive accounting
management system, so as to provide the management with
indicators to evaluate its financial and operating performance and
financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Any
deviation from expectation will be analysed and explained, and
appropriate steps will be carried out to address issues where
necessary. The Group has set up appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure full, proper and timely record of accounting
and management information, which will be reviewed and
inspected on a regular basis to ensure the financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, accounting policies of the Group and applicable laws and
regulations.

CONTINUING OPERATION

During the year, there are no uncertain events or conditions that
may materially affect the continuing operation of Group on a going
concern.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company reports to the shareholders regarding corporate
information of the Group on a timely and accurate basis. Printed
copies of the 2020 interim report have been sent to all shareholders.
The Company places great emphasis on communication with
shareholders and investors of the Company and improving the
Company’s transparency of information disclosure. As such,
designated officers are assigned to handle relations with investors
and analysts. The Company made disclosures in a faithful, true,
accurate, complete and timely manner in strict accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations, Articles of Association and Listing
Rules. At the same time, the Company places great importance in
collecting and analyzing various comments and recommendations
of analysts and investors on the Company’s operations, which
would be compiled into reports regularly and adopted selectively
in its operations. The Company has set up a website, allowing
investors to access updates on the Company’s particulars,
statutory announcements, management and recent operating
affairs. All published annual reports, interim reports, circulars and
announcements since the date of Listing are and will be included
in the “Investors Relations” section of the website. The Company
persistently adheres to its disclosure principle of honesty and
integrity and actively initiates communications with various parties.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must
be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
putting forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board of the
Company. Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite 715, Ocean Centre, 5 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations
Department)

Fax: 852-36203100

Email: office@szbjh.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.szbjh.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of each member of the Company are set
out in note 34 to the financial statements. The principal activities of
the operating subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020 are operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses and provision of financing services in the
PRC.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 78.

DIVIDENDS
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 29 to the financial statements
respectively.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable reserves
amounted to approximately RMB242.9 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Associations of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed or cancelled any of the Company’s
listed shares.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong

(Chairman)
(Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung

Mr. Sun Ju Yi

Mr. Ai Ji

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong shall retire
from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting by rotation.
All retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election. The re-election of Directors will be individually voted by
Shareholders.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. The Company considers that
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
All of the Independent Non-executive Directors are members
of the Company’s audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGRE(E)

BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 14 to 17.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (two years
for Independent Non-executive Directors) unless terminated by
not less than three months’ (two months’ for Independent Non-
executive Directors) written notice of termination served by either
the Director or the Company. Each of the service contracts further
provides that during the term of the service contract and within two
years upon the termination of service, the Executive Director cannot
engage in any business which is competing or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Company.
The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement
and rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into
any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation)). The Company’s policies concerning
remuneration of the Executive Directors are as follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by
case basis depending on the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

(if) non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the
Board to the relevant Directors under their remuneration
package; and

(i) the Executive Directors may be granted, at the discretion

of the Board, the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in section under “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report on pages 61 to 65, no Director nor
controlling shareholders had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Company. There is no contract of significance between the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or its
controlling shareholder during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which (a) were required notification to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any such Director
and chief executives is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

EERBETHRAEREAQFRHA
MBZERSG - AEROREESE
MERKXE

RZEZEF+_A=1+—H E=k&s
THABRARQRSEEMER EZE(EE
RBEHFRBEGRN(TEHRBEED])E
XVER) 2 g tn - MEERHKESF - Tﬁﬁ()
*ET)‘?'M%&HHﬁ1I7M§IJ%XV*I3%7&8/‘* il
MEARRRBRTzEEIORR (BIEE
MBEBESERE djﬁ/\é!*ﬁﬁfzﬁ%&%ﬁ
1B BB GRS B SR AIEE S 2 e I0%k
B K(b)RIEEFH R E &G 35215785,
ARRBFIGEELCMAZBRIOAR © &
C)IRIE EMMAATE LB ITAZEREITE
FRGIRETRI([ZESFR] D BAME AR
AR AT SR BT ¢

RABEREE.OEBITZEER

Number of shares/Underlying Shares Held

sk, MHERHBHE
Percentage
of Issued
Personal Family Total Shares
Capacity Interest Interest Interest HE 1T
g5 PN EQiy £ HmEE ROBIHL
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”) Beneficial Owner 467,985,000 67,500,000 535,485,000 51.61%
SEfEsR S A ([HEEAE D) BEREAA (Note 1)
(M$7E1)
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong Beneficial Owner 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 7.23%
NS EnlAA
Note: Mz -
1) 67,500,000 Shares are held by Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan (“Mrs. Zhuang”). Since (1) 67,500,000 =Mzt ( [FX])

KA - ANEARLEENRERS  SUREES
REBEGD - HAERGEREAF AN LR
Bt rh A S -

Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mr. Zhuang is
deemed to be interested in the said Shares held by Mrs. Zhuang.

EXEEZ A ERIED
ipzifa -

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the RARE 5 KA

shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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BEEgGHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executive and their associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouses or
minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so far as
was known to any Director, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
associated Corporation” above), had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Personal/
corporate
interest
Type of interest Capacity BA/
BRES &% AGIL§
Mrs. Zhuang Personal Beneficial owner 67,500,000
X ENER ERBAA
Ms. Zhuang Xiao Yun  Personal Beneficial owner 75,000,000
NERT A AR E&BBA (Note 2)
(M&E2)
Ms. Chen Li Jun Personal Beneficial owner 75,000,000
REEZT U 55 E&BA (Note 3)
(M7E3)
Notes:
(1) 467,985,000 Shares are held by Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”). Since Mr.

Zhuang is the spouse of Mrs. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mrs. Zhuang is deemed
to be interested in the said Shares held by Mr. Zhuang.

(2) Ms. Zhuang Xiao Yun is the daughter of Mr. Zhuang and Mrs. Zhuang.

) Ms. Chen Li Jun is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Zhuang and Mrs. Zhuang.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known to the
Directors, other than the Directors, who, as at 31 December 2020,
had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Company has entered into the continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Rental income received from BJH Group
FYTEEEEBEABR AR (Shenzhen Baijiahua Group
Company Limited) (“BJH Group”) is owned as to 90% by
Mr. Zhuang and 10% by Mrs. Zhuang. BJH Group is thus an
associate of Mr. Zhuang and therefore a connected person
of the Company.

Certain commercial properties are leased to BJH Group
pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between
BJH Department Stores and BJH Group for commercial
purposes. The amount of rental income received by the BJH
Department Stores in respect of the leasing of commercial
properties was RMB2,302,534.08 for the year ended 31
December 2020, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB2,302,534.08. The relevant amount which are expected
to be receivable by BJH Department Stores will not exceed
RMB2,302,534.08 for the year ending 31 December 2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Lease of three store premises from JH Real Estate
FINTEEFHERZEABR QA (Shenzhen Jiahua Real
Estate Development Company Limited) (“JH Real Estate”) is
owned as to 18% by Mrs. Zhuang and 82% by BJH Group
(a2 company owned as to 90% by Mr. Zhuang and 10%
as to Mrs. Zhuang). Since Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of
Mr. Zhuang, she is an associate of Mr. Zhuang. Since Mr.
Zhuang is interested in the equity capital of JH Real Estate so
as to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the
voting power at general meetings of JH Real Estate, JH Real
Estate is an associate of Mr. Zhuang and also a connected
person of the Company. The Group leased three stores
premises from JH Real Estate, details of which are set out as
follows:

2.

62

(i)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 6 November
2006 (“Shiyan Store Lease Agreement”) between
JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH Department
Stores (as tenant), BJH Department Stores leases
the store premises situated at Level 1 of Commercial
Podium, Jiahua Hao Yuan, Western Shiyan Avenue,
Shiyan Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC with a gross floor area of
approximately 5,851.50 square metres for a term of
15 years commencing from 16 November 2006 and
expiring on 15 November 2021 at a monthly rent of
RMB222,357 with triennial increase of 5%. Pursuant
to a supplemental agreement dated 6 November
2006 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the parties agreed that if the Company cannot
meet with the requirements in respect of continuing
connected transactions (including but not limited to
obtaining approval by independent shareholders),
BJH Department Stores has the right to terminate
the transactions under the Shiyan Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shiyan Store Lease Agreement, the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
RMB3,243,316 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB3,250,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB2,840,000 for the year ending 31
December 2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

2. Lease of three store premises from JH Real Estate
(Continued)

(if)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 23 February
2009 (“Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement”)
between JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH
Department Stores (as tenant), BJH Department
Stores leases the store premises situated at Level
1 of Commercial Podium, Jiahua Shuyuan Yage,
Southwestern Side of Dabao Road, Xinan Jiedao,
Baoan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC with a gross floor area of approximately
2,693.69 square metres for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 March 2009 and expiring on 28
February 2012 for a monthly rental of RMB80,810.7.
Pursuant to the Supplementary Lease Agreement
dated 28 January 2010 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the monthly rental has been
reduced to RMB53,873.8 effective from 1 February
2010 to the end of the original lease. Pursuant to
a Supplementary Lease Agreement dated 30 May
2011 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the lease has been renewed to another
three years from 1 June 2011 to 31 May 2014 with
a monthly rental of RMB53,873.8. Pursuant to a
Lease Agreement dated 30 May 2014 between JH
Real Estate and BJH Department Stores, the lease
has been renewed to another three years from 1
June 2014 to 31 May 2017 with a monthly rental
of RMB56,567.49. Pursuant to a Lease Agreement
dated 31 May 2017 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the lease has been renewed
to another three years from 1 June 2017 to 31 May
2020 with a monthly rental of RMB56,567.49. The
parties to the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement
agreed that if the Company cannot meet with the
requirements in respect of continuing connected
transactions (including but not limited to obtaining
approval by independent shareholders), BJH
Department Stores has the right to terminate the
transactions under the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement dated 31
May 2017, the total annual consideration paid by BJH
Department Stores was approximately RMB282,837
for the year ended 31 December 2020, and has not
exceeded the annual cap of RMB300,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Lease of three store premises from JH Real Estate
(Continued)

2.

64

(i)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 25 August
2016 (“Bantian Lease Agreement”) between JH
Real Estate (as landlord) and Shenzhen Baijiahua
Commercial Management Limited (“BJH CM”) (as
tenant), BJH CM leases the shopping mall situated
at Level 1-6 of Jiahua Ling Hui Plaza located in the
South-west side of junction of Ji Hua Road and Wu
He West Street, Bantian Street, Longgang District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC with a
gross floor area of approximately 34,743.62 square
metres for a term of 15 years commencing from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2031 for a monthly
rental of RMB1,806,668.24 with a 5% increment on
the monthly rent every 3 years. The parties to the
Bantian Lease Agreement agreed that if the Company
cannot meet with the requirements in respect of
continuing connected transactions (including but
not limited to obtaining approval by independent
shareholders), BJH CM has the right to terminate the
transactions under the Bantian Lease Agreement by
giving written notice to JH Real Estate without any
payment or compensation. Pursuant to the Bantian
Lease Agreement, the total annual consideration paid
by BJH CM was RMB22,764,019.82, for the year
ended 31 December 2020, and has not exceeded
the annual cap of RMB22,764,019.82. The relevant
amount which are expected to be payable by BJH
CM will not exceed RMB22,764,019.82 for the year
ending 31 December 2021.

Rental income received from JH Real Estate
Certain commercial properties are leased to Jiahua Real
Estate pursuant to a lease agreement entered into between
BJH Department Stores and Jiahua Real Estate for
commercial purposes. The amount of rental income received
by the BJH Department Stores in respect of the leasing of
commercial properties was RMB766,542 for the year ended
31 December 2020, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB1,000,000.00. The relevant amount which are expected
to be receivable by BJH Department Stores will not exceed
RMB1,000,000.00 for the year ending 31 December 2021.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of the continuing connected
transactions referred to above are made in the ordinary and
usual course of our business, on an arm’s length basis and on
normal commercial terms which are no less favorable than terms
available from independent third parties. The Directors (including
the Independent Non-executive Directors) confirm that these
transactions have been conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions and are of the view that the
terms and conditions of these transactions are fair and reasonable
and are in the best interests of our Company and our shareholders
as a whole.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors,
are also of the view that the Annual Caps are fair and reasonable as
far as our shareholders taken as a whole are concerned.

The Directors confirm that they have received a confirmation from
its auditor regarding the matters as stated in Chapter 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules for the continuing connected transactions.

The Directors confirm that the disclosure requirement in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has been
complied with by the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.7% of
the total revenue for the year and the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 7.2%
of the total purchases for the year and the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers and major customers noted above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the Main Board
Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict
of interest with the Company during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been reviewed by the audit committee
before recommending to the Board for approval.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to, the shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the Company’s newly issued and
listed shares on the Stock Exchange in May 2007 (after deduction
of related issuance expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$265,000,000.

As of 31 December 2020, approximately HK$207,834,000 of
the proceeds so raised was used, and the unused proceeds of
approximately HK$57,166,000 was deposited with banks, the
security of which was adequately ensured.

Details of the used proceeds raised of approximately
HK$207,834,000 are set out as follows:

° as to approximately HK$29,000,000 for acquisition of the
business of a retail chain in Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$28,300,000 for opening of new
stores in Yanbu Foshan and Ronggui Foshan, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$8,750,000 for opening of a new
store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$4,350,000 for opening of two new
stores in Xinan Baoan Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$10,400,000 for opening of a new
store in Luohu Shenzhen, the PRC;
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USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

LEHARERERAE(E)

(Continued)

as to approximately HK$15,800,000 for opening of a new
store in Buji Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$14,300,000 for opening of another
new store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$3,690,000 for opening of a new
supermarket in Bantian Longgang, Shenzhen, the PRGC;

as to approximately HK$8,800,000 for opening of a
restaurant and two beverage kiosks in Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$3,600,000 for opening of a theme
restaurant and a Chinese restaurant in Baoan and Longgang
Shenzhen, the PRC respectively;

as to approximately HK$9,200,000 for setting up of a
procurement centre in Shiyan Shenzhen, the PRC;

as to approximately HK$12,919,000 for the purchase of
transportation equipment;

as to approximately HK$15,000,000 for the purchase of
office equipment;

as to approximately HK$3,000,000 for the upgrade of the
MIS;

as to approximately HK$725,000 to promote the Company’s
brand image; and

as to approximately HK$40,000,000 for the refurbishments
of existing retail stores.

The unused proceeds will be used by the Company for the
purposes as set out in the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 8 May 2007.
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AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in the sections of Chairman’s Statement,
Management Discussion and Analysis and Five Years Financial
Summary on pages 6 to 13, pages 18 to 42 and pages 215 to 216
respectively of this annual report.

The Group recognises that its employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality products and services to its customers
and enhancing co-operation with its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a clean, energy saving and
harmonious environmental conservation policy.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing
Rules will be published within three months after the publication of
the annual report of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
IMPACT ON THE COMPANY

The Group is continuously monitoring their compliance to ensure
that the Group abides by such laws and regulations from time
to time. Besides those general laws and regulations such as the
Company Law of the PRC, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Group has also complied in all material respects with
all the laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business of the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board
Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

29 March 2021
Shenzhen, the PRC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R R ETE: e

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EiE : +852 2218 8288
{55 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiahua
Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 213, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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